
Anabelle Island 
 Community Development District 

 
OCTOBER 8, 2024 



 Anabelle Island  
  Community Development District 

  475 West Town Place 
             Suite 114  

  St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
 

              
  

October 1, 2024 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Anabelle Island Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Anabelle Island Community Development 
District will be held Tuesday, October 8, 2024 at 2:00 p.m. at the Plantation Oaks Amenity 
Center, 845 Oakleaf Plantation Parkway, Orange Park, Florida 32065.   
 
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Audience Comments (regarding agenda items listed below) 
 
 III. Organizational Matters 
  A. Acceptance of Resignation from Supervisor McDade 
 
  B. Appointment of New Supervisor to Fill Unexpired Term of Office (11/26) 
 
  C. Oath of Office for Newly Appointed Supervisor 
 
  D. Election of Officers, Resolution 2025-01 
 
 IV. Consideration of Minutes of the August 13, 2024 Meeting  
 
 V. Ratification of Audit Engagement Letter with Grau & Associates for Fiscal Year 

2024 Audit 
  
  VI. Staff Reports   
  A. Attorney  
  
  B. Engineer  
  
   C. Manager  
 
   D. Operations Manager  
   



 VII. Supervisors Requests  
 
 VIII. Audience Comments 
 
 IX. Consideration of Funding Request No. 23 
 
 X. Financial Statements as of August 31, 2024 
 
 XI. Check Register 
 
 XII. Next Scheduled Meeting – November 5, 2024 @ 2:00 p.m.  
 
 XIII. Adjournment  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



From: "McDade, Jim" <jamcdade@kbhome.com> 
Subject: Anabelle CDD 
Date: August 27, 2024 at 10:10:14 AM EDT 
To: Marilee Giles <mgiles@gmsnf.com> 
 
Please accept this email as my resignation from the board of the Anabelle CDD. 
  
Jim McDade 
Executive Vice President 
KB Home Jacksonville Division 
10475 Fortune Parkway Suite 100 
Jacksonville, FL 32256 
904-596-6634  O 
 

mailto:jamcdade@kbhome.com
mailto:mgiles@gmsnf.com


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



RESOLUTION 2025-01 
 

A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING OFFICERS OF THE 
ANABELLE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Anabelle Community Development District 
at a regular business meeting held on October 8, 2024 desires to elect the below recited persons 
to the offices specified. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE ANABELLE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 1.  The following persons were elected to the offices shown, to wit: 
 
     Chairman 

     Vice-Chairperson 

   Marilee Giles  Secretary 

   Marilee Giles  Treasurer 

   James Oliver  Assistant Treasurer(s)  

   Daniel Laughlin  

   Darrin Mossing  

   James Oliver  Assistant Secretary(s) 

   Daniel Laughlin   

   Darrin Mossing   
      
      
      
  
 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 8TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 2024. 
 
   
 Chairman / Vice Chairman 
 
   
 Secretary / Assistant Secretary 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



MINUTES OF MEETING 
ANABELLE ISLAND 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Anabelle Island Community 

Development District was held Tuesday, August 13, 2024 at 2:10 p.m. at Plantation Oaks Amenity 

Center, 845 Oakleaf Plantation Parkway, Orange Park, Florida.  

 

 Present and constituting a quorum: 
 
 Darren Gowens Supervisor 
 Rose Bock Supervisor  
 James Summerset Supervisor 
  
  
 Also present were: 
 
 
 Marilee Giles District Manager, GMS 
 Jennifer Kilinski by phone District Counsel, Kilinski Van Wyk  
 Chris Loy District Counsel, Kilinski Van Wyk 
 David Taylor by phone District Engineer 
 Jay Soriano Operations, GMS 
 Freddie Oca GMS 
  
   
 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS  Roll Call 

 Ms. Giles called the meeting to order at 2:10 p.m. Three Board members were in attendance 

constituting a quorum.  

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS  Audience Comments 

 Ms. Giles asked if there were any audience comments on the agenda items. There being no 

comments, the next item followed.  

 

  



August 13, 2024 Anabelle Island CDD 

2 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Minutes of the July 9, 
2024 Meeting 

 Ms. Giles stated there was an administrative correction from District Counsel to the July 

9, 2024 meeting minutes. Ms. Giles asked if there were any Board comments or corrections or 

changes to the minutes. The Board had no changes to the minutes.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Summerset, seconded by Ms. Bock, with all in 
favor, the Minutes of the July 9, 2024 Meeting, were approved.  

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing to Adopt Suspension and 
Termination Rules, Rate Fee Schedule and 
Consideration of Resolution 2024-04 

 Ms. Giles stated this is a public hearing to adopt suspensions and termination rules, rate 

fee schedule, and consideration of Resolution 2024-04. She noted at the last meeting the Board 

was presented with a draft for consideration and for the hearing today. 

 Mr. Loy provided an overview of the resolution drafted by management. Mr. Loy explained 

how the suspension and rules apply to the amenity usage. He reviewed the fees for losing an access 

card would be for $25, return check fee $50, and administrative fees up to $500. He added this 

gives the District the ability to charge up to this amount.  

 Discussion was held on policies, rate fees, public notices, review by District Counsel, the 

annual user fees range between $2,000 and $4,000, staff on using the range instead of a set amount, 

a one-time fee, and most times it is for the year and is not prorated.   

 Ms. Kilinski commented on the public hearing and the range of fee costs. 

 Ms. Giles asked for a motion to open the public hearing. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Gowens, seconded by Mr. Summerset, with all 
in favor, Opening the Public Hearing, was approved. 

  

 Ms. Giles stated the public hearing is open and this is an agenda item that requires a public 

hearing. Ms. Giles asked for comments on the rate schedule with the range to allow a nonresident 

to buy an access card, have privileges at the facilities, and the suspension and termination rules. 



August 13, 2024 Anabelle Island CDD 

3 

 Audience comments were made on a non-residents buying a membership, inviting friends 

and the restrictions on this process. Ms. Giles stated in the amenity policy on guest restrictions 

apply just as they do to residents, and the allowance of up to 4 guests applies as well.  

 Ms. Giles asked for a motion to close the public hearing.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Summerset, seconded by Mr. Gowens, with all 
in favor, Closing the Public Hearing, was approved. 

  

 Ms. Giles ask for Board input based on the audience comments and guidance to staff for 

the resolution. After discussion the Board decided to have the annual user fee at $4,000. Ms. Giles 

asked about keeping the range and the posting in the facilities policies at the high dollar amount. 

The Board agreed. The motion was made to approve the resolution.  

  

On MOTION by Mr. Summerset, seconded by Mr. Gowens, with all 
in favor, Adopting the Suspension and Termination Rules, Rate Fee 
Schedule and Resolution 2024-04, was approved. 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Amenity Facility Policies 

 Ms. Giles stated this item contains the draft of the amenity facility policies. The non-

resident user fee will be $4,000. It also contains guidance on a dog park policy. There will be some 

hard copies available and it will be posted to the website.  

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock, seconded by Mr. Summerset, with all in 
favor, the Amenity Facilities Policies, were approved in substantial 
form, with changes made.  

  

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Fiscal Year 2025 Budget  
A. Overview of Budget 

 Ms. Giles provided an overview of the FY 2025 budget. She added the board approved this 

at the last meeting with no change in the O&M budget and no assessments increase in 2025. She 

noted this assessment is the same as in 2024 and will reflect $800 for a 50-foot lot and a 55-foot 

lot. She asked for any board questions. This will approve the budget and adopt the funding and 

assessments.  

 



August 13, 2024 Anabelle Island CDD 

4 

B. Public Hearing  
 Ms. Giles asked for a motion to open the public hearing for both the budget and the 

assessments.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Gowens, seconded by Mr. Summerset, with all 
in favor, Opening the Public Hearing, was approved. 

  

 Ms. Giles noted the public hearing is open and asked for audience questions. Audience 

member asked if the landscaping invoices were paid. Ms. Giles asked for them to hold and they 

will answer questions on another item.  

 Ms. Giles asked for a motion to close the public hearing.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Summerset, seconded by Mr. Gowens, with all 
in favor, Closing the Public Hearing, was approved. 

  

C. Consideration of Resolution 2024-05, Relating to the Annual Appropriations and 
Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2025 

 Ms. Giles stated the resolution was in the agenda package for Board review. Hearing no 

questions on the resolution, she asked for a motion to approve.  

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock, seconded by Mr. Summerset, with all in 
favor, the Resolution 2024-05 Relating to the Annual Appropriations 
and Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2025, was approved. 

 

D. Consideration of Resolution 2024-06, Imposing Special Assessments and Certifying 
an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2025 

 Ms. Giles offered to answer any questions on Resolution 2024-06.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Gowens, seconded by Ms. Bock, with all in 
favor, the Resolution 2024-06 Imposing Special Assessments and 
Certifying an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2025, was approved. 

 

  



August 13, 2024 Anabelle Island CDD 

5 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Fiscal Year 2025 Budget 
Funding Agreement 

 Mr. Loy reviewed the Fiscal Year 2025 Funding Agreement and explained that it clarifies 

and tabulates the amount the District will collect both on roll and off roll properties. He added if 

there is a difference it will be paid. He added this will begin October 1, 2024 and end September 

2025. Ms. Giles ask for a motion to approve the agreement.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Gowens, seconded by Mr. Summerset, with all 
in favor, the Fiscal Year 2025 Budget Funding Agreement, was 
approved. 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion of CDD Goals & Objectives 
 Mr. Loy reviewed the new requirement stating as of October 1, 2024 all CDDs must 

establish goals and objectives for their programs and activities and performance measures and 

standards to access the achievement of the goals. He noted there was not much guidance or 

direction, but the intent is to ensure the District is operating efficiently and effectively. They will 

need to be submitted to the state. Staff created a draft for Board review.  

 Ms. Giles noted changes can be made if needed and it must be approved by October 1st.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Summerset, seconded by Mr. Gowens, with all 
in favor, the CDD Goals and Objectives, were approved. 

  

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposals: 
A.  Pest Control 

 Ms. Giles presented the pest control proposal that was tabled at the last meeting to allow 

the board to investigate what pest control was currently in place. Mr. Soriano reviewed the 

proposals and the costs of each for termites and pest control.  

 The board had questions on specific services, warranties, and the difference in costs. They 

expressed the desire to keep both with one company. Mr. Soriano noted staff will work with the 

board recommendation on amounts and draft an agreement.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Summerset, seconded by Mr. Gowens, with all 
in favor, the Proposal with Harvey Pest Control for Pest Control, was 
approved. 



August 13, 2024 Anabelle Island CDD 

6 

 

B. RGM Mailbox Awning 
 Mr. Soriano reviewed the proposal from RGM to install mailbox shade structures with 

fabric covering. He explained the specifics of size, fabrics, permits, coverage of mailboxes, and 

gazebo fabric. He noted this does not include a timeline from RGM and just needs board approval. 

Once the board approves a timeline can be established once permits are completed. Mr. Soriano 

stated the board could give a timeline on approval. The board requested this begin right away and 

a timeline and a permit within 30 days. The proposal is for $7,980.21 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Summerset, seconded by Mr. Gowens, with all 
in favor, the Proposal for RGM Mailbox Awning, was approved. 

 

Mr. Soriano stated Board direction was needed for a refuse service. He recommended the 

board amend and add this to the GMS contract. Discussion was held on making this a priority. Ms. 

Giles added this is for $2,500. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Gowens, seconded by Mr. Summerset, with all 
in favor, Amending the GMS Contract to Add Refuse Services in the 
FY2025 Budget with a Line Item of $2,500, was approved. 

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Staff Reports 
A. Attorney  

 Ms. Kilinski reminded the Board to complete the ethics training before the end of the year 

and must be filed by July of next year.  

 

B. Engineer  
Mr. Taylor had nothing to report.  

 

C. Manager – Discussion of Fiscal Year 2025 Meeting Schedule  
 Ms. Giles reviewed the meeting schedule for 2025 for the second Tuesday of each month. 

She added some changes due to the Landowners election and recommended to hold on the 

November 5th meeting. She noted there were no conflicts with holidays.  



August 13, 2024 Anabelle Island CDD 

7 

 Ms. Giles explained that meetings can be cancelled if there are no items on the agenda, the 

funds stay with the District and will be posted on the website.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Gowens, seconded by Mr. Summerset, with all 
in favor, the Fiscal Year 2025 Meeting Schedule Amending the 
November meeting to November 5, 2024, was approved. 

  

 Ms. Giles added that going forward an Operations Report will be added to the agenda. She 

asked if there were any items to discuss under Operations & Management. Mr. Soriano explained 

the process to ratify invoices if necessary.  

 Ms. Giles added since the adoption of the amenity center policies the process has started 

for the access cards and has been emailed to the residents.  

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisors Requests 

  Mr. Summerset asked about issue with the entry lights. Mr. Soriano noted these concerns 

will be directed to him by email going forward. He discussed the HOA and the process for website 

posting for his contact. She added Facebook will not be used for communication.  

 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 

  Audience comments on sprinklers. Mr. Soriano replied with comments on the contract and 

replacing broken heads.  

 Other audience comments and discussion was held on monitoring of the frequency of 

irrigation repairs, and irrigation schedule, an irrigation map is needed, watering is continuing the 

sidewalk and street in the classic section and has not been addressed, question on the possibility to 

add lights to mailbox area, the dog park area, trash can locations in the mailbox and dog park areas 

and waste stations, question on possible change in times for the meetings, timeline for amenity 

center, violation of rules communication, concerns on creation and drafting of rules for overnight 

parking and towing, and cost of pest control.  

 Responses to audience concerns were addressed. Mr. Soriano discussed his schedule and 

irrigation schedules. Ms. Giles discussed resident concerns and vendor response. Mr. Soriano 

noted the mailbox covers are not equipped for lighting. Ms. Giles added the CDD is not responsible 

for the upcoming dog park, budget lines can be added for dog waste stations but not currently in 



August 13, 2024 Anabelle Island CDD 

8 

the budget. Ms. Giles stated the developer boards are held during the day, online options are not 

available. She added with resident boards that could change. She noted the staff has worked on the 

QR code to send residents to enroll in constant contact and the grand opening.  

 Mr. Soriano noted the district does not have on-site staff and ask that residents report to 

the staff any concerns.  

 Ms. Giles noted that the board could develop towing policies, but there are concerns. They 

would need to let staff know if the board would consider. 

 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Financial Statements as of June 30, 2024 

 Ms. Giles presented the financial statements of June 30, 2024.  

 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Check Register 

 Ms. Giles presented the check register ending on July 31, 2024 totaling $23,094.55. She 

noted there were no unusual variances and reminded Mr. Soriano about an email from a resident 

with concerns on the United Landscape invoices.  

   

On MOTION by Mr. Gowens, seconded by Ms. Bock, with all in 
favor, the Check Register totaling $23,094.55,was approved.  

 

 Public comment was made on the annual planting and rotation. 

 

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting – September 10, 
2024 @ 2:00 p.m. 

 Ms. Giles stated the next scheduled meeting is September 10, 2024 at this location at 2:00 

p.m.  

 

SIXTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Adjournment 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock, seconded by Mr. Summerset, with all in 
favor, the meeting was adjourned. 

 

 
 
 



August 13, 2024 Anabelle Island CDD 

9 

    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  













 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Community	Development	District Funding	Request	#	23
September	30,	2024

	 PAYEE
GENERAL		FUND		

FY24

1 Governmental	Management	Services
Inv	#	56	-	Facility	Maintenance	-	August	2024 798.31$																	

2 United	Land	Services
Inv	#	109446	-	Flowers	rotation 2,330.04																

3 Clay	County	Utility	Authority
September	Service 2,257.77																

4 Clay	Electric
September	Service 229.04																			

TOTAL 5,615.16$													

Please	make	check	payable	to:
Anabelle	Island		CDD
475	W	Town	Place	Suite	114
Saint	Augustine,	FL	32092

Signature:

Signature:

Anabelle	Island

Chairman/Vice	Chairman

Secretary/Asst.	Secretary































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

Unaudited	Financial	Reporting
August	31,	2024



	 General	 Debt	Service	 Capital	Project Totals
	 Fund Fund Fund Governmental	Funds

Assets: 	
Cash:
Operating	Account 45,968$																											 -$																																						 -$																																						 45,968$																																													

Investments:
Custody 1,475																																	 -																																															 -																																															 1,475																																																			

Series	2022
Reserve		 -																																												 173,408																														 -																																															 173,408																																													
Revenue		 -																																												 136,196																														 -																																															 136,196																																													
Construction -																																												 -																																															 26,806																																	 26,806																																																

Prepaid	Expenses 1,563																																	 -																																															 -																																															 1,563																																																			
Deposits 1,975																																	 -																																															 -																																															 1,975																																																			

Total	Assets 50,981$																								 309,603$																								 26,806$																											 387,390$																																							

Liabilities:
Accounts	Payable 5,918$																														 -$																																						 -$																																						 5,918$																																																

Total	Liabilites 5,918$																											 -$																																					 -$																																					 5,918$																																														

Fund	Balance: 	
Nonspendable:
Prepaid	Items 1,563$																														 -$																																						 -$																																						 1,563$																																																
Deposits 1,975																																	 -																																															 -																																															 1,975																																																			

Restricted	for:
Debt	Service	-	Series	 -																																												 309,603																														 -																																															 309,603																																													
Capital	Project	-	Series	 -																																												 -																																															 26,806																																	 26,806																																																

Unassigned 41,525																														 -																																															 -																																															 41,525																																																

Total	Fund	Balances 45,063$																								 309,603$																								 26,806$																											 381,472$																																							

Total		Liabilities	&	Fund	Balance 50,981$																											 309,603$																											 26,806$																														 387,390$																																										

Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

Combined	Balance	Sheet
August	31,	2024



Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	08/31/24 Thru	08/31/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll 158,672$														 158,672$														 159,066$														 394$																					
Special	Assessments	-	Direct	Bill 51,597																			 51,597																			 51,597																			 -																															
Developer	Contributions 187,708																 12,438																			 12,438																			 -																															
Interest	Income -																																		 -																																		 2,409																						 2,409																			

Total		Revenues 397,977$														 222,707$														 225,510$														 2,803$																	

Expenditures:

General	&	Administrative:

Supervisors	Fees 12,000$																	 11,000$																	 600$																								 10,400$														
FICA	Taxes 918																										 842																										 46																													 796																							
Engineering 5,000																						 4,583																						 -																																		 4,583																			
Attorney 15,000																			 13,750																			 14,747																			 (997)																					
Arbitrage 700																										 642																										 -																																		 642																							
Assessment	Roll 5,300																						 5,300																						 5,300																						 -																															
Dissemination	Agent 3,710																						 3,401																						 3,401																						 (0)																											
Annual	Audit 5,600																						 5,600																						 5,600																						 -																															
Trustee 6,500																						 6,500																						 4,353																						 2,147																			
Management	Fees 50,085																			 45,911																			 45,911																			 -																															
Website	Maintenance 1,200																						 1,100																						 1,100																						 -																															
Information	Technology 1,800																						 1,650																						 1,650																						 -																															
Telephone 300																										 275																										 35																													 240																							
Postage 2,500																						 2,292																						 147																										 2,144																			
Insurance 5,913																						 5,913																						 5,590																						 323																							
Printing 2,500																						 2,292																						 281																										 2,010																			
Legal	Advertising 2,500																						 2,292																						 469																										 1,822																			
Other	Current	Charges 700																										 642																										 160																										 482																							
Office	Supplies 100																										 92																													 1																																 91																										
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions 175																										 175																										 175																										 -																															

Total	General	&	Administrative 122,501$														 114,250$														 89,567$																	 24,683$														

Operations	&	Maintenance

Ground	Maintenance	
Electric 1,500$																				 1,375$																				 -$																															 1,375$																	
Reclaimed	Water 30,000																			 27,500																			 15,021																			 12,479																
Repairs	&	Maintenance 5,000																						 4,583																						 2,600																						 1,983																			
Landscape	-	Contract 97,476																			 89,353																			 57,188																			 32,165																
Landscape	-	Contingency 20,000																			 18,333																			 17,153																			 1,181																			
Lake	Maintenance 10,000																			 9,167																						 4,600																						 4,567																			
Irrigation	Repairs 5,000																						 5,000																						 6,020																						 (1,020)																	

Subtotal	Ground	Maintenance 168,976$														 155,311$														 102,581$														 52,730$														

Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

General	Fund
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	August	31,	2024



Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	08/31/24 Thru	08/31/24 Variance

Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

General	Fund
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	August	31,	2024

Amenity	Center
Insurance 5,000$																				 5,000$																				 4,045$																				 955$																					
Phone/Internet/Cable 3,000																						 2,750																						 -																																		 2,750																			
Electric 16,000																			 14,667																			 -																																		 14,667																
Water	&	Sewer 15,000																			 13,750																			 -																																		 13,750																
Refuse	Service 2,500																						 2,292																						 -																																		 2,292																			
Access	Cards 2,500																						 2,292																						 -																																		 2,292																			
Janitorial	Maintenance 14,000																			 12,833																			 645																										 12,188																
Janitorial	Supplies 4,000																						 3,667																						 -																																		 3,667																			
Pool	Maintenance 15,000																			 13,750																			 806																										 12,944																
Pool	Chemicals 10,000																			 9,167																						 538																										 8,629																			
Pool	Permit 500																										 458																										 -																																		 458																							
Facility	Maintenance 7,500																						 6,875																						 1,667																						 5,208																			
Repairs	&	Maintenance 10,000																			 9,167																						 -																																		 9,167																			
Office	Supplies 200																										 183																										 -																																		 183																							
ASCAP/BMI	License	Fees 500																										 458																										 -																																		 458																							
Pest	Control 800																										 733																										 190																										 543																							

Subtotal	Amenity	Center 106,500$														 98,042$																	 7,891$																				 90,151$														

Total	Operations	&	Maintenance 275,476$														 253,353$														 110,472$														 142,881$											

Total	Expenditures 397,977$														 367,603$														 200,039$														 167,564$											

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures -$																															 (144,896)$												 25,471$																	 170,367$											

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance -$																															 (144,896)$												 25,471$																	 170,367$											

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																															 19,592$																	

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																															 45,063$																	



Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Total

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll -$																								 1,505$																			 149,799$													 760$																							 3,834$																			 1,552$																			 -$																								 -$																								 1,615$																			 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 159,066$													
Special	Assessments	-	Direct	Bill -																																	 -																																	 25,798																		 12,899																		 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 12,899																		 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 51,597																		
Developer	Contributions -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 12,438																		 -																																	 -																																	 12,438																		
Interest	Income -																																	 -																																	 2																															 363																									 416																									 401																									 274																									 231																									 239																									 236																									 248																									 -																																	 2,409																					

Total		Revenues -$																								 1,505$																			 175,599$													 14,023$																 4,250$																			 1,953$																			 274$																							 13,130$																 1,854$																			 12,674$																 248$																							 -$																								 225,510$													

Expenditures:

General	&	Administrative:

Supervisors	Fees -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 200$																							 -$																								 200$																							 200$																							 -$																								 600$																							
FICA	Taxes -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 15																												 -																																	 15																												 15																												 -																																	 46																												
Engineering -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
Attorney -																																	 96																												 157																									 155																									 96																												 398																									 2,867																					 2,258																					 1,612																					 3,338																					 3,772																					 -																																	 14,747																		
Arbitrage -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
Assessment	Roll 5,300																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 5,300																					
Dissemination	Agent 309																									 309																									 309																									 309																									 309																									 309																									 309																									 309																									 309																									 309																									 309																									 -																																	 3,401																					
Annual	Audit -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 5,600																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 5,600																					
Trustee 1,875																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 2,478																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 4,353																					
Management	Fees 4,174																					 4,174																					 4,174																					 4,174																					 4,174																					 4,174																					 4,174																					 4,174																					 4,174																					 4,174																					 4,174																					 -																																	 45,911																		
Website	Maintenance 100																									 100																									 100																									 100																									 100																									 100																									 100																									 100																									 100																									 100																									 100																									 -																																	 1,100																					
Information	Technology 150																									 150																									 150																									 150																									 150																									 150																									 150																									 150																									 150																									 150																									 150																									 -																																	 1,650																					
Telephone 10																												 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 24																												 1																															 -																																	 35																												
Postage 2																															 1																															 -																																	 1																															 1																															 1																															 39																												 24																												 23																												 41																												 16																												 -																																	 147																									
Insurance 5,590																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 5,590																					
Printing 2																															 4																															 8																															 2																															 9																															 8																															 12																												 8																															 147																									 20																												 64																												 -																																	 281																									
Legal	Advertising -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 403																									 66																												 -																																	 469																									
Other	Current	Charges 11																												 25																												 27																												 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 83																												 15																												 -																																	 160																									
Office	Supplies 0																															 0																															 -																																	 0																															 0																															 0																															 0																															 0																															 0																															 0																															 0																															 -																																	 1																															
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions 175																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 175																									

Total	General	&	Administrative 17,698$																 4,859$																			 4,924$																			 4,890$																			 4,838$																			 7,618$																			 13,250$																 7,237$																			 6,514$																			 8,857$																			 8,882$																			 -$																														 89,567$																

Operations	&	Maintenance

Ground	Maintenance	
Electric -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																														
Reclaimed	Water 762																									 914																									 510																									 227																									 223																									 690																									 563																									 2,221																					 1,427																					 2,580																					 4,905																					 -																																	 15,021																		
Repairs	&	Maintenance -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 2,600																					 -																																	 -																																	 2,600																					
Landscape	-	Contract -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 6,939																					 6,939																					 6,939																					 6,939																					 6,939																					 7,185																					 7,185																					 8,123																					 -																																	 57,188																		
Landscape	-	Contingency -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 8,962																					 2,080																					 2,500																					 1,531																					 2,080																					 -																																	 17,153																		
Lake	Maintenance -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 920																									 920																									 920																									 920																									 920																									 -																																	 4,600																					
Irrigation	Repairs -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 850																									 -																																	 683																									 2,034																					 -																																	 1,308																					 1,145																					 -																																	 6,020																					

Subtotal	Ground	Maintenance 762$																							 914$																							 510$																							 7,166$																			 8,012$																			 7,629$																			 18,067$																 14,193$																 12,032$																 16,124$																 17,173$																 -$																														 102,581$													

Month	to	Month



Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Total

Month	to	Month

Amenity	Center
Insurance 4,045$																			 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 4,045$																			
Phone/Internet/Cable -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
Electric -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
Water	&	Sewer -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
Refuse	Service -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
Access	Cards -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
Janitorial	Maintenance -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 645																									 -																																	 645																									
Janitorial	Supplies -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
Pool	Maintenance -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 806																									 -																																	 806																									
Pool	Chemicals -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 538																									 -																																	 538																									
Pool	Permit -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
Facility	Maintenance -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 417																									 625																									 625																									 -																																	 1,667																					
Repairs	&	Maintenance -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
Office	Supplies -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
ASCAP/BMI	License	Fees -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
Pest	Control -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 190																									 -																																	 190																									

Subtotal	Amenity	Center 4,045$																			 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 417$																							 625$																							 2,804$																			 -$																														 7,891$																			

Total	Operations	&	Maintenance 4,807$																			 914$																							 510$																							 7,166$																			 8,012$																			 7,629$																			 18,067$																 14,193$																 12,448$																 16,749$																 19,977$																 -$																														 110,472$													

Total	Expenditures 22,505$																 5,773$																			 5,434$																			 12,056$																 12,850$																 15,246$																 31,317$																 21,431$																 18,963$																 25,606$																 28,860$																 -$																														 200,039$													

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures (22,505)$														 (4,267)$																	 170,165$													 1,966$																			 (8,600)$																	 (13,293)$														 (31,044)$														 (8,301)$																	 (17,108)$														 (12,932)$														 (28,612)$														 -$																														 25,471$																

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance (22,505)$														 (4,267)$																	 170,165$													 1,966$																			 (8,600)$																	 (13,293)$														 (31,044)$														 (8,301)$																	 (17,108)$														 (12,932)$														 (28,612)$														 -$																														 25,471$																



Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District
Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2022

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	August	31,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	08/31/24 Thru	08/31/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll 198,314$														 198,314$														 198,832$														 518$																								
Special	Assessments	-	Direct	Bill 148,501																 148,501																 148,501																 -																																		
Interest	Income 500																										 500																										 13,640																			 13,140																			

Total		Revenues 347,315$														 347,315$														 360,973$														 13,658$																	

Expenditures:

Interest	-	11/1 109,618$														 109,618$														 109,618$														 -$																															
Interest	-	5/1 109,618																 109,618																 109,618																 -																																		
Principal	-	5/1 125,000																 125,000																 125,000																 -																																		

Total	Expenditures 344,235$														 344,235$														 344,235$														 -$																															

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures 3,080$																				 3,080$																				 16,738$																	 13,658$																	

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses):

Transfer	In/(Out) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Total	Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance 3,080$																				 3,080$																				 16,738$																	 13,658$																	

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 111,555$														 292,866$														
	

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 114,635$														 309,603$														



Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

Statement	of	Revenues	and	Expenditures

Capital	Projects	Fund

For	The	Period	Ending	August	31,	2024
	

Description SE	2022

Revenues

Interest	Income:
Construction 1,149$																										

	Transfer	In -																																								

Total	Revenues 1,149$																										

Expenditures

Capital	Outlay -$																															
Transfer	Out -																																								

Total	Expenditures -$																															

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) 1,149$																										

Beginning	Fund	Balance 25,656$																							

Ending	Fund	Balance 26,806$																							



Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

Long	Term	Debt	Report

Interest	Rate: 2.7%	-	4.0%
Maturity	Date: 5/1/2052
Reserve	Fund	Definition 50%	MADS
Reserve	Fund	Requirement 173,408$													
Reserve	Fund	Balance 173,408																

Bonds	outstanding	-	2/10/2022 6,190,000$														
Less:	May	1,	2023	(Mandatory) (125,000)
Less:	May	1,	2024	(Mandatory) (125,000)

Current	Bonds	Outstanding 5,940,000$														

Series	2022,	Special	Assessment	Refunding	Bonds



ANABELLE ISLAND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Fiscal Year 2024 Assessments Receipts Summary

ASSESSED
 UNITS 

ASSESSED
SERIES 2022 

DEBT ASSESSED
FY24 O&M 
ASSESSED TOTAL ASSESSED

KB HOMES (1) 158          148,500.73          51,596.63           200,097.36 
TOTAL DIRECT INVOICES (1) 158          148,500.73          51,596.63           200,097.36 

ASSESSED REVENUE TAX ROLL 211          198,340.00        158,672.00           357,012.00 

TOTAL ASSESSED 369          346,840.73        210,268.63           557,109.36 

DUE / RECEIVED BALANCE DUE
SERIES 2022 

DEBT RECEIVED
 O&M 

RECEIVED TOTAL RECEIVED
KB HOMES (1)                  0.00          148,500.73          51,596.63           200,097.36 

TOTAL DIRECT RECEIVED                  0.00          148,500.73          51,596.63           200,097.36 

TAX ROLL DUE / RECEIVED                       -            198,832.20        159,065.76           357,897.96 

TOTAL DUE / RECEIVED                  0.00          347,332.93        210,662.39           557,995.32 

(1) Direct Assessments are due: 50% due 12/1/23 and 25% due 2/1/24 and 5/1/204

SUMMARY OF TAX ROLL RECEIPTS

CLAY COUNTY DISTRIBUTION
DATE 

RECEIVED
SERIES 2022 

DEBT RECEIVED O&M RECEIVED TOTAL RECEIVED
1 11/6/2023 -                       -                    -                        
2 11/14/2023 940.80                752.64              1,693.44              
3 11/28/2023 940.80                752.64              1,693.44              
4 12/12/2023 183,456.00         146,764.80      330,220.80         
5 12/23/2024 3,792.60             3,034.08           6,826.68              
6 1/10/2024 950.60                760.48              1,711.08              
7 2/5/2024 4,792.20             3,833.76           8,625.96              
8 3/14/2024 1,940.40             1,552.32           3,492.72              
9 4/9/2024 -                       -                    -                        

10 5/7/2024 -                       -                    -                        
11 6/6/2024 -                       -                    -                        

TAX CERTIFICATES 6/24/2024 2,018.80             1,615.04           3,633.84              
-                       -                    
-                       -                    
-                       -                    
-                       -                    
-                       -                    

TOTAL RECEIVED TAX ROLL          198,832.20        159,065.76           357,897.96 

PERCENT COLLECTED 2022 O&M TOTAL
%  COLLECTED DIRECT BILL 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

% COLLECTED TAX ROLL 100.25% 100.25% 100.25%
TOTAL PERCENT COLLECTED 100.14% 100.19% 100.16%



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Fund Date Check	No. Amount

Payroll -$																				

Subtotal -$																				

General	Fund
9/5/24 175-177 3,066.15$										
9/12/24 178-180 19,288.01										
9/17/24 181-182 3,799.59												
9/24/24 183-184 13,741.00										

Subtotal 39,894.75$								

Total 39,894.75$							

Anabelle	Island
Community	Development	District

Check	Run	Summary
September	30,	2024



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  9/30/24          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 09/01/2024 - 09/30/2024 ***       ANABELLE ISLAND - GENERAL FUND

BANK A ANABELLE - GENERAL

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/05/24 00003 8/29/24 2024-283 202408 310-51300-48000                                     *               66.15
MEETING DATES FY 24-25

CLAY TODAY NEWSPAPER                                               66.15 000175
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/05/24 00015 9/02/24 209882B  202409 320-57200-44400                                     *              920.00

SEPT LAKE MAINTENANCE
THE LAKE DOCTORS                                                  920.00 000176

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/05/24 00013 8/30/24 104868   202408 320-57200-43500                                     *            2,080.00

TREE REMOVAL #3
FLORIDA ULS OPERATING LLC                                       2,080.00 000177

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/12/24 00007 8/28/24 24870    202409 300-15500-10000                                     *           10,147.00

FY25 INSURANCE RENEWAL
EGIS INSURANCE ADVISORS, LLC                                   10,147.00 000178

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/12/24 00001 9/01/24 53       202409 320-57200-46100                                     *              625.00

SEP CONTRACT ADMIN.
9/01/24 53       202409 320-57200-45600                                     *              208.33

SEP TRASH SERVICES
9/01/24 53       202409 320-57200-46300                                     *            1,000.00

SEP JANITORIAL SERVICES
9/01/24 53       202409 320-57200-46200                                     *            1,250.00

SEP POOL MAINTENANCE
9/01/24 53       202409 320-57200-46210                                     *              833.33

SEP POOL CHEMICALS
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                3,916.66 000179

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/12/24 00001 9/01/24 54       202409 310-51300-34000                                     *            4,173.75

SEP MANAGEMENT FEES
9/01/24 54       202409 310-51300-35300                                     *              100.00

SEP WEBSITE ADMIN.
9/01/24 54       202409 310-51300-35100                                     *              150.00

SEP INFORMATION TECH.
9/01/24 54       202409 310-51300-31300                                     *              309.17

SEP DISSEMINATION SVCS
9/01/24 54       202409 310-51300-51000                                     *                 .27

OFFICE SUPPLIES
9/01/24 54       202409 310-51300-42000                                     *               25.33

POSTAGE
9/01/24 54       202409 310-51300-42500                                     *              446.10

COPIES
9/01/24 54       202409 310-51300-41000                                     *               19.73

TELEPHONE
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                5,224.35 000180

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

AICD ANABELLE ISLAN OKUZMUK   



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  9/30/24          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 09/01/2024 - 09/30/2024 ***       ANABELLE ISLAND - GENERAL FUND

BANK A ANABELLE - GENERAL

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/17/24 00011 9/08/24 10276    202408 310-51300-31500                                     *            3,772.00
AUG GENERAL COUNSEL

KILINSKI VAN WYK PLLC                                           3,772.00 000181
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/17/24 00009 9/16/24 09162024 202409 310-51300-49000                                     *               27.59

MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT
ROSE S. BOCK                                                       27.59 000182

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/24/24 00001 9/15/24 55       202409 300-15500-10000                                     *            5,618.00

FY25 ASSESSMENT ROLL CERT
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                5,618.00 000183

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/24/24 00013 9/15/24 108225   202409 320-57200-43400                                     *            8,123.00

SEP LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
FLORIDA ULS OPERATING LLC                                       8,123.00 000184

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                 39,894.75

TOTAL FOR REGISTER               39,894.75

AICD ANABELLE ISLAN OKUZMUK   






























	Agenda
	III. A.        Acceptance of Resignation from Supervisor McDade
	D. Election of Officers, Resolution 2025-01
	IV.       Consideration of Minutes of the August 13, 2024 Meeting
	V. Ratification of Audit Engagement Letter with Grau & Associates for Fiscal Year 2024 Audit
	IX.       Consideration of Funding Request No. 23
	X.        Financial Statements as of August 31, 2024
	XI.       Check Register



